
 

 

 

Warringah Urban Fringe Association Incorporated 

(WUFA), 

PO Box 125, 

Belrose, 2085 

Ph: 0419 777 502 
www.warringahurbanfringeassociation.org.au 

 

19 April 2015, 

The Hon. Rob Stokes,  

Minister for Planning, 

Level 34 Governor Macquarie Tower, 

1 Farrer Place, 

SYDNEY NSW 2000 

 

Dear Minister, 

 

Oxford Falls Valley and Belrose North Strategic Review, Warringah  

 

I am writing to you regarding the proposed rezoning of land in the Warringah Local Government area. 

 

When land in the Warringah Local Government Area was being brought into the new planning system in 2009, 

Warringah Council proposed zoning a large area of land as E3 (Environmental Management, one of the Environment 

Protection Zones). This proposed E3 zone included large areas of land that is of high environmental value (which we 

agree should be zoned E3), and other areas of land which is not of high environmental value (which should not be 

zoned an environmental zone). Due to community outrage at the proposal, the then Minister for Planning, Brad 

Hazzard, deferred most of the proposed E3 land from WLEP2011 before approving WLEP2011 in December 2011. The 

land was deferred subject to a Strategic Review being carried out jointly by the Department of Planning and Warringah 

Council. 

 

Around the same time an independent review was also carried out into land proposed to be zoned Environmental 

zones on the North Coast of NSW. This review was undertaken for the Department of Planning by a prominent 

environmental consulting company (Parsons Brinkerhoff). The finding of the independent review provided clear 

direction to the Department of Planning over what land was acceptable to be zoned as an Environmental zone. It was 

this clear direction that culminated in the following instructions being issued to Warringah Council: 

 

1) Brad Hazzard Letter to Warringah Council dated 17 March 2014 (Appendix A) 

2) Dept of Planning email from Neil McGaffin (General Manager Metropolitan Delivery, Department of Planning) 

dated 15 May 2015 (Appendix B) 

3) Pru Goward letter dated 27 August 2014 (Appendix C) 

 

As part of Stage 1 of the Strategic review process the Warringah Development Assessment Panel (WDAP) held a public 

hearing and came to a unanimous recommendation that Council:  

 

“not proceed with approval of a Gateway approach for this Planning Proposal at the 

present time and that, instead, they commence immediately to implement stage 2, 

undertaking the detailed work required to finally decide on the values of the deferred 

lands and their relevance for an environmental (or other) zoning in the LGA of 

Warringah”. The recommendation of WDAP can be found in Appendix D. 



 

 

 

On 23 January 2015, Marcus Ray (Acting Deputy Secretary, Planning Services, Department of Planning and 

Environment) wrote to Warringah Council on behalf of the Minister for Planning. This letter can be found in Appendix 

E. Mr Ray’s letter represented a major change in direction by the Department of Planning in that it appeared to 

endorse the zoning of land that was of low to moderate environmental value as an environmental zone. This land 

included the C3 Church at Oxford Falls, Oxford Falls Grammar School and many other properties that are clearly of low 

to moderate environmental value. 

 

Subsequent to Marcus Ray’s letter of 23 January 2015, a select group of landowners in the deferred area met with 

Brad Hazzard and representatives from the Department of Planning. This select group of landowners included the 

General Managers of C3 Church Oxford Falls and Oxford Falls Grammar School. In this meeting it was expressed by C3 

Church that the community has lost faith in the Strategic Review process. This was a very succinct and accurate 

description of the community’s view on the Strategic Review process. As a result of this meeting Marcus Ray has 

written us a letter dated 27 March 2015 (Appendix E). Although this letter retracts slightly from Marcus Ray’s earlier 

letter of 23 January 2015, it now leaves the Strategic Review process in a very undefined state that still lacks the 

community’s faith. 

 

Appendix F of this letter contains a letter that I have written to Marcus Ray in order to try and clarify some outstanding 

issues. 

 

Appendix G of this letter contains a letter that I have written to Minister Pru Goward in regards to her having been 

misled by Warringah Council. We have never received a response to this letter. 

 

WUFA requests your urgent intervention in this process to ensure our members (C3 church, schools, tennis centre, golf 

club, nurseries and over one hundred private landowners) are not unfairly zoned as an Environmental Zone, and that 

Stage 2 of the Strategic Review be undertaken by an independent organisation (under the instruction of the 

Department of Planning) urgently so minimum lots sizes and correct strategic zonings can be applied. We ask you to 

keep the whole area deferred until Stage 2 of the Strategic Review is completed. This approach will be in accordance 

with the unanimous recommendations of the Warringah Development Assessment Panel. This recommended process 

will also allow the deferred area to be considered in regard to the recently released “A Plan for Growing Sydney”. 

I would like to request a meeting between six representative landowners and yourself to discuss this issue. 

Yours sincerely, 

 

John Holman BE (Hons), MBA 

President 

Warringah Urban Fringe Association Inc. (WUFA) 

Email: president@warringahurbanfringeassociation.org.au 

 

CC Minister Brad Hazard (Member for Wakehurst), Jonathon O’Dea (Member for Davidson), Carolyn McNally 

(Secretary Department of Planning) 



 

 

Appendix A – Letter from Brad Hazzard (17 March 2014) 

 



 

 

 



 

 

Appendix B – Email from Neil McGaffin (15 May 2014) 

To: Council general managers and key stakeholders 

From: NSW Department of Planning & Environment 

Date: 15 May 2014 

  

Oxford Falls Valley and Belrose North Strategic Review 

I am writing to provide an update on the Oxford Falls Valley and Belrose North Strategic 

Review, which was prepared by the Department of Planning & Environment and Warringah 

Council. 

The review process is now complete. As a result of public submissions, council has been 

asked to re-examine land that was proposed to be zoned E3 Environmental Management and 

also identified as having no or moderate environmental development constraints.  

This land - which makes up a large amount of the area proposed to be zoned E3 - will 

continue to be deferred from Warringah’s local environmental plan (LEP) until 

further studies are undertaken to identify the most appropriate zone. 

Other land within the precinct has been recommended for zones including low density and 

large lot residential, small lot rural production and for special infrastructure purposes. For 

these sites, planning proposals will need to be prepared by council to rezone the land in line 

with the Strategic Review’s findings. 

It needs to be highlighted that lawfully-established land uses in the area can continue to be 

carried out or be expanded as an “existing use”. 

The Submissions Report and Strategic Review have now been forwarded to the Warringah 

Development Assessment Panel which will consider all submissions made during the 

exhibition period, conduct an independent public hearing, and provide a report to council. 

Council will then consider the outcomes of the Strategic Review. 

Council will also need to undertake further studies to determine the future urban 

development capability of the Oxford Falls Valley and Belrose North area. 

More information  

 

To learn more about the Oxford Falls Valley and Belrose North Strategic Review you can:  
• visit our website to view the proposed changes  
• call our Information Centre on 1300 305 695. 

Neil McGaffin 
General Manager – Metropolitan Delivery 
Department of Planning and Environment 
 

 



 

 

Appendix C – Letter from Pru Goward (27 August 2014) 

 



 

 

 



 

 

Appendix D – Extract from the Minutes Warringah Development Assessment Panel (WDAP) Meeting 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Appendix E – Motion passed by Warringah Council on 26 August 2014 

 



 

 

Appendix F – Letter from Marcus Ray (23 January 2015) 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

Appendix E – Letter from Marcus Ray (27 March 2015) 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Appendix F – Letter from WUFA to Marcus Ray (19 April 2015) 

 



 

 

 



 

 

Appendix G – Letter from WUFA to Minister Pru Goward (22 March 2015) 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 


